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ALL PROSPECTIVE OFFERORS 
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AMENDMENT 
ISSUE DATE: Thursday, November 6, 2014 

SUBJECT: Solicitation No: DCSC-15-FS-0002 

FOR: Financial Auditing Services 

CLOSING DATE: Monday, November17,2014 

The subject solicitation is amended as follows: 

1. Responses to written questions received from prospective offeror(s) are included 
as Attachment A to this amendment. 

2. Delete CUN 0002, Task 2a, Pages 13, 16, 18, 20, and 22. 
Insert: CUN 0002, Task 2a, Pages 13, 16, 18, 20 and 22 as follows: "Test and 
evaluate sample based transactions to render an opinion on the Fiscal Year 
(FY14) 2014 Financial Statements that comply GAAPand with OMB Circular A-
136 Financial Reporting Requirements, for the base year and option years 
thereafter, as revised, which will include the following where applicable: balance 
sheet, statement of net cost, statement of changes in net, position, statement of 
budgetary resources and related note disclosures." 

ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN UNCHANGED. 

One ( 1) copy of this amendment is being sent to only those offerers who received a copy 
the solicitation. Offerers shall sign below and attach a signed copy of this amendment to 
each proposal to be submitted to the Courts in response to the subject solicitation. 
Proposals shall be mailed or delivered in accordance with the instructions provided in 
the original solicitation documents. 

Offerers shall submit their proposals in sealed envelopes, identified on the outside by the 
solicitation number and submission date, in accordance with the instructions provided in 
the original solicitation documents. 

This amendment, together with your Proposal, must be received by the District of 
Columbia Courts no later than the date and time specified for proposal submission. 
Revisions or price changes occasioned by this amendment must be received by the 
Courts no later than the date and time set for Proposal submission. 

Failure to acknowledge receipt of this amendment, for the subject solicitation may be 
cause for rejection of any proposals submitted in response to the subject solicitation. 
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This Amendment is acknowledged and is considered a part of the subject 
solicitation. 

Signature of Authorized Representative Date 

Name of Authorized Representative 

Title of Authorized Representative 

Name of Firm 



ATTACHMENT A- Questions and Responses to Solicitation No. DCSC-15-FS-0002 
Financial Auditing Services of the District of Columbia Courts 

1. Would DC Courts please provide the audited financial statements for FYs 2011, 2012, and 
2013? 

On page 8 Section 1.3 Other Background in the RFP, it provides selected financial 
information from fiscal year 2009 through fiscal year 2013 pertaining to the DC Courts. 
Specifically, the following information: 

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 

Audit Opinion Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified 

Total Assets 
$476,016,86 $511,253,45 $513,075,39 $514,437,68 $491,414, 70 

3 2 4 2 9 

Total Net Cost of $259,237,23 $274,922,87 $304,887 ,08 $299,053,36 $308,186,59 

Operations 0 7 1 7 2 

Total Budgetary 
$286,764,37 $281,405,50 $310,437,66 $311,261,50 $303, 765,67 

Resources I 
6 9 1 7 1 

Outlays 

Total Net Position 
$425,432,27 $470,672,51 $470,331,82 $458,260,57 $435,921,96 

9 6 5 3 4 

If you need, the actual financial statements, you can obtain them at the following 
location: 

www .dccourts.gov/procurement 

2. Are the FY 2014 financial statements being audited currently? If so, would DC Courts please 
provide the anticipated issuance date for the audit report? 

Yes, fiscal year 2014 financial statements are currently being audited. The anticipated 
issuance date is November 30, 2014. 

3. What is the estimated level of effort for the FY 2014 audit? What is the estimated level of 
effort for the FY 2015 audit? 

Questions need to be clarified or further defined. 

4. Page 3, Section 1.1.1.D references the applicability of the Single Audit Act for any state or 
local government receiving more than $500,000 in federal financial assistance. Does DC 
Courts prepare and submit single audits? Is it preparing a single audit for FY 2014? 



Yes, the DC Courts prepare and submit single audits. Yes, the DC Courts is preparing a 
single audit for FY 2014. 

5. Page 3, Section 1.1.1.E: Is the general ledger for DC Courts maintained in accordance with 
Federal Accounting Standards Advisory Board (FASAB) standards? Accordingly, does DC 
Courts adhere to the U.S. Standard General Ledger, including the use of budgetary 
accounts? 

Yes, the general ledger for DC Courts maintained in accordance with Federal Accounting 
Standards Advisory Board (FASAB) standards. Yes, the DC Courts adheres to the U.S. 
Standard General ledger, including the use of budgetary accounts. 

6. Page 6, Section 1.1.1.1 states that DC Courts' financial statements " ... are prepared in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and other statements 
promulgated by the Federal Accounting Standards Advisory Board [FASAB] and as 
appropriate, by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board [GASB] (particularly GASBs 
34, 37, and 38), and Financial Accounting Standards Board [FASB]." As FASAB, GASB, and 
FASB represent three different sets of reporting standards that are promulgated by three 
different authoritative bodies, which set of standards do the DC Courts' financial statements 
assert to adhere to? 

DC Courts is a unique agency in that it's mostly comprised of congressional appropriations 
subject to FASAB. In addition, the DC Courts receive non-appropriated congressional 
funds that are subject to GASB. As such, these standards will apply to the agency, which 
operates in a quasi-federal government agency per OMB. 

7. Page 10, Section 2, Scope of Services, Paragraph 2.1: Is an examination-level opinion on 
internal controls required? If so, will management provide a written assertion on internal 
controls over financial reporting? 

Yes, management will perform or contract to be performed tests of control design and 
effectiveness of key financial reporting internal control processes. Subsequent to such 
testing, a FMFIA Report will be produced by the Internal Audit unit and submitted to the 
CFO that attests to the internal control environment. The external independent public 
auditor (IPA) will opine on the sufficiency of the tests performed to indicate whether or 
not the financial reporting internal control procedures are adequate in design and 
implementation. 

8. Page 10, Section 2.1 states that the scope of services requires "assessments and 
compilation of supporting schedules." Does DC Courts anticipate that the auditor will 
compile supporting schedules that will be included in the audited financial statements? If 
so, would DC Courts please clarify how this work is to be performed while maintaining 
auditor independence? 

The DC Courts will compile all necessary supporting schedules in order to facilitate the IPA 
rendering an opinion on transactions and the financial reports taken as a whole. The IPA 



may compile schedules to facilitate their review and support its opinion. Such schedules 
are not deemed to be opined upon in rendering such an opinion. 

9. Page 11, Section 2.2.D: Is the auditor responsible for compiling documentation in response 
to the audit findings after completion of the audit? 

No, the IPA is not responsible for compiling documentation in response to the audit 
findings; however, the IPA will provide their documentation for review in the event a 
finding is discovered. 

10. Page 13, Section 2.8: Is DC Courts requesting an "audit" of internal controls and an "audit" 
of compliance with laws and regulations? If so, will management provide written assertions 
for each? 

No, however in rendering an opinion on the DC Courts' financial reports, it is understood 
that any relevant laws, financial reporting internal controls and regulatory compliance 
impacting the financial reporting process needs to be considered by the IPA in rendering 
an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. 

11. On pages 13-14, Tasks 2a and 2b indicate a FY 2014 audit. Would DC Courts please clarify 
whether it intended to reference FY 2015 instead? 

The base year audit is 2015. Please note and make the correction that Tasks 2a and 2b as 
outlined for the base year refers to fiscal year 2015. 

12. Page 14, Task 3: Would DC Courts please clarify whether the independent auditor will be 
responsible for preparing, finalizing, and distributing the management representation 
letters related to the audit, as this is usually management's responsibility? 

In accordance with AU Section 333 relating to management representations, DC Court 
management will be responsible for preparing, finalizing and distributing the 
Management Representation. 

13. Page 14, Task 4: Would DC Courts please clarify how the two deliverables listed achieve the 
task requirement? The requirement is to audit the new financial accounting computer
based system, while the deliverables are an independent auditor's report on the financial 
statements and a report on internal controls in accordance with Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Bulletin 14-02. The scope of services does not appear to be the same. 

In order to evaluate the audited financial reports and processing of financial information, 
it is necessary for the IPA to determine the security and reliability of the computer based 
system. The new computer based financial system is a service provider to the DC Courts. 
Therefore, the evaluation of the financial reports, the associated internal financial 
reporting controls and the system utilized to support the processing and reporting of 
financial information is inextricably linked. 



14. Page 15, Task 6: Would DC Courts please verify that the reference should be to FY 2015 
instead of FY 2014? 

The base year audit is 2015. Please note and make the correction that Tasks 6 as outlined 
for the base year refers to fiscal year 2015. 

15. Page 15, Task 6: Would DC Courts please clarify how offerers should submit a firm-fixed 
price quote for this task, given that the deliverable is identified as "to be determined, if 
applicable and necessary ... "? 

This task is stated as such to allow for any deliverable that was not satisfactorily 
implemented by the IPA and time was needed to produce and provide the deliverable 
subsequent to original due date. It is only applicable' in such situations and therefore, it 
can only be defined at present as "to be determined." 

16. On pages 13-23, Tasks 1 through 6 were repeated verbatim for each option period. Would 
DC Courts please verify that the references to years should be updated for each option 
period? Also, would DC Courts please clarify whether it intends for Task 4 to be an audit of 
the new computer-based system implemented in FY 2014 not only in the base year, but for 
each option period subsequent to that? 

The base year audit is 2015. Subsequent to the base year, there are option years 2016, 
2017, 2018 and 2019. Please note and make the correction for Tasks 1through6. 

Task 4 in the base year and option years would remain; in order to evaluate the audited 
financial reports and processing of financial information, it is necessary for the IPA to 
determine the security and reliability of the computer based system. The new computer 
based financial system is a service provider to the DC Courts. 

17. Page 24, Section 3.2.E indicates the audit should be completed within 120 days (4 months) 
"from the date specified in the Audit Engagement Notification." Would DC Courts please 
clarify how it determines that date? How does this coincide with the requirement for work 
to commence within 5 days after award (page 11, Section 2.2.A), and with the period of 
performance being January 1 through December 31? In addition, one of the deliverables is 
an audit of expenditures offederal awards in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, and the 
reporting deadlines ofthat circular are no later than nine months after the balance sheet 
date (e.g., June 30, 2016, for the FY 2015 audit). Would DC Courts please clarify how this 
coincides? 

The base year audit is 2015 and the audit performance for the base year shall cover 
October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015. It is suggested that audit be conducted in 
phases, e.g., planning, fieldwork, post fieldwork/ management conference, and reporting. 
The planning phase could be from January through April; Fieldwork Phase for l 5

t, 2"d and 
3rd qtrs could be from June - August; Fieldwork Phase for 4th qtr I year end could be from 
October - November; Post Fieldwork Phase could be from November - December and 
Report Phase could be in December. January of following year would represent 120 days 
after fiscal year and could be used for post reporting follow up, if applicable. It is 



anticipated that all work will not be done in a contiguous manner, and there will be 
periods where IPA is not on site I actively participating on engagement. 

18. Page 26, Section 9.3 states that offerers must provide a copy of their GSA contract as part of 
the business/pricing proposal. Would DC Courts consider submission of the offerer's GSA 
FABS pricelist and GSA Schedule modification showing the current rates and period of 
performance to be sufficient for this requirement? 

Yes. Electronic CD's are acceptable also. 

19. Would DC Courts please specify key personnel for this solicitation? Pages 28 and 29, 
Sections 10.3.D, 10.4.A, and 10.5.B require resumes for key personnel but do not identify 
which positions are considered key. 

Key personnel would be defined as all actively involved personnel on the engagement. 
Typically, this would include the Engagement Partner, the Concurring Partner, 
Engagement Manager, Audit Senior(s) and Staff Auditor(s). 

20. Page 29, Section 10.4.A states that offerers should include resumes of key personnel in 
Section C of the proposal; however, Section 10.5.B states that offerers should include key 
personnel resumes in Section D of the proposal. Would DC Courts please clarify where the 
resumes should be included in the offerer's proposal? 

Key personnel Resumes should be included to the extent they can be identified at the 
time of responding to proposal. 

21. Is there a page limit restriction on the technical and price proposals? 

No page limit has been defined for the technical proposal. 

22. Would DC Courts please clarify whether its financial statement audit is consolidated into 
the financial statements of the DC government, or any other state, local, or federal 
government entity? 

DC Courts financial statement audit is NOT consolidated into the financial statements of 
the DC Government or any other local, state or federal government. 

23. Page 27, Section 9.4 states, "Each firm shall submit an original and FIVE (5) copies of 
their technical proposals and FIVE (5) copies of their price proposals under separate 
cover." Would DC Courts please clarify whether offerers should include an original copy 
of the price proposal as well? 

Yes, the DC Courts requests, an original and FIVE (5) copies of both the Technical and 
Price Proposals. 



24. Page 28, Section 10.3.D states that assigned staff should have accounting/auditing 
degrees. Would DC Courts consider changing the requirement to "accounting/auditing 
degrees or degrees in other relevant fields such as information technology," to enable 
offerers to propose information security staff, statisticians, or other specialists as 
needed? 

Key personnel for the audit test work should conform to the requirements specified. 
DC Courts will be amenable to personnel with other disciplines such as information 
technology for review of financial computer systems. 

25. Page 29, Section 10.6 states that while offerers may use Attachment J.9 for their past 
performance section, "(3) references are still required." Would DC Courts please clarify 
whether a reference using Attachment J.9 can be used in place of an alternate letter of 
reference, or if alternate letters of reference should still be provided even if offerers 
provide three copies of Attachment J.9? 

The DC Courts will accept three (3) letters of reference or three (3) past performance 
records--Attachment J.9. The main point is three references are required. 

26. Would DC Courts please confirm that references should provide Attachment J.9/letters 
of reference directly to DC Courts, rather than to the offerers for inclusion in their 
proposal? If so, would DC Courts please confirm that Darlene Reynolds, Contract 
Specialist, will be the point of contact for these documents? 

The Contractor shall include any references or Attachment J.9 forms in the Technical 
Proposal as stated in Section 10 of the solicitation. 

27. On pages 29- 30, Section 11 lists the evaluation criteria, which add up to 100 points. 
However, there is no value included for the price factor. Would DC Courts please clarify 
how heavily price weighs against the technical factors? 

Technical factors are evaluated absence of price proposals to make a preliminary 
decision. Afterwards, price proposals are evaluated. Therefore, no point values are 
assessed for price factors as that is subject to budgetary metrics. 

28. Can DC Courts clarify which Attachments (J.1-J.9) are required to be completed and 
returned with the proposal? If so, should offerers submit completed Attachments as a 

separate file from the technical and price proposals, i.e. submit a file with all required 
completed Attachments? Are offerers only required to return one original signed 
version of these Attachments? 

The Contractor may include Attachments J. 1 through J.8 in a separate file or in the 
Technical Proposal. Attachment J.9 shall be included in the Technical Proposal-past 
performance is an evaluated factor. 



29. The period of performance for 120 days seems tight to finalize the deliverables. Please 
confirm that the correct period of performance should be February 1, 2015 to November 
15, 2015. 

The base year audit is 2015 and the audit performance for the base year shall cover 

October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015. It is suggested that audit be conducted in 

phases, e.g., planning, fieldwork, post fieldwork/ management conference, and reporting. 

The planning phase could be from January through April; Fieldwork Phase for 15t, 2nd and 

3rd qtrs could be from June - August; Fieldwork Phase for 4th qtr I year end could be from 

October ; Post Fieldwork Phase could be from November - December and Report Phase 

could be in December. January of following year would represent 120 days after fiscal 

year and could be used for post reporting follow up, if applicable. It is anticipated that all 

work will not be done in a contiguous manner, and there will be periods where IPA is not 

on site / actively participating on engagement. 

30. Section C and Section D, on page 29 both ask for resumes for Key personnel. Would you 

please provide the labor categories for Key Personnel? Also, may we place the resumes 

in Appendix 1 to reduce duplication for each section? 

Key personnel would be defined as all actively involved personnel on the engagement. 

Typically, this would include the Engagement Partner, the Concurring Partner, 

Engagement Manager, Audit Senior(s) and Staff Auditor(s). Key personnel Resumes 

should be included to the extent they can be identified at the time of responding to 

proposal. Resumes can be placed in Appendix 1 to reduce duplication. 

31. Section D, item A, page 29, asks or a Project Plan. Please provide what format you would 

like to see this project plan. 

It is suggested that the audit be conducted in phases, e.g., planning, fieldwork, post 

fieldwork/ management conference, and reporting. The planning phase could be from 

January through April; Fieldwork Phase for 15
\ 2nd and 3rd quarters could be from June -

August; Fieldwork Phase for 4th qtr I year end could be from October - November; Post 

Fieldwork Phase could be from November - December and Report Phase could be in 

December. As such, the Project Plan could be formatted to reflect which Deliverable 

would be started and completed in a given Phase and the time frame, e.g., months, a 

particular Phase would be started and completed. 



32. Who is the current auditor? Is the current auditor allowed to bid this requirement? 

The incumbent is Williams, Adley and Company, LLC. Yes, the incumbent is allowed to 
bid. 

33. Did the previous auditor issue a management letter for the fiscal year ended September 

30, 2013? Can interested contractors receive a copy of the management letter, if one was 

issued? 

Yes the previous auditor did issue a management letter. The management letter is the 
property of the DC Courts and will only be shared with the contractor who is selected to 
perform the requested audit services. 

34. For contract line item (CUN) 0006, how can the contractor provide a firm fixed price 
without District of Columbia Courts indication of the level of effort and deliverables to be 
provided? This question applies to both the base year and the option years. 

This task is stated as such to allow for any deliverable that was not satisfactorily 
implemented by the IPA and time was needed to produce and provide the deliverable 
subsequent to original due date. It is only applicable in such situations and therefore, it 
can only be defined at present as "to be determined." 

35. In the deliverables schedule/item description chart, the base year plus every option year 
for the work refers to "Task 2a" as auditing Fiscal year 2014, can you clarify with me that 
this is not correct, and should be modified to start with Fiscal year 2015 as the base year 
and the continue for the consecutive following years? 

Yes. Please note deleted CLIN 0002, Task 2A for the base year and subsequent option 
years and apply inserted CLIN 0002, Task 2A for the base year and subsequent option 
years on the signed Amendment No. 2 document. Amendment No. 2 will be 
incorporated in the contract award. 


